
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU 

                     
 
 

 
 

South Thames Gateway 
Building Control Joint 

Committee 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Members of the South Thames Gateway Building Control Joint Committee are summoned to 
attend a meeting to be held at Medway Council offices, Gun Wharf, Chatham on Thursday, 9 
June 2011 at 10.00 am when the business specified in the following agenda is proposed to be 
transacted. 
 
 

 
S Kilkie 
Assistant Director (Communities) 
 
 

Agenda 
 

Part A 
Items likely to be considered in Public 

1. Appointment of Chairman and Vice-Chairman   

 Members are asked to note that the following Members have been 
appointed to the committee at the respective Annual Council meetings: 
 
Gravesham 
Councillor Burden 
Councillor Cribbon  
 
Medway 
Councillor Chitty 
Councillor Bright  
 
Swale 
Councillor Lewin 
Councillor Morris  
 

 

2. Apologies for absence   

Public Document Pack



3. To sign the minutes of the previous meeting  (Pages 1 - 4) 

4. To declare any interest members may have in the items contained on this 
agenda.   When declaring an interest a member must state what their 
interest is.  

 

5. To consider whether any items in Part A of the agenda should be 
considered in private or any items in Part B in public  

 

6. Final Out-turn and Statement of Accounts 2010-2011 and Appointment of 
External Auditor  

(Pages 5 - 16) 

 To approve the draft statement of accounts for the 2010 – 2011 financial 
year and appoint an external auditor. 
  
 

 

7. Accommodation for the Partnership  (Pages 17 - 28) 

 To consider accommodation arrangements following the expiry of the 
current agreement on 02 November 2011. 
  
 

 

8. Administrative Arrangements   

 To consider 
 

A) The timetable of meetings for the remainder of the 
2011/2012 municipal year  

 
The provisional dates shown below were agreed in January 
2011 however a request has been received that the 
September date be put back to 22nd September 2011 
 

• 15 September 2011 
• 8 December 2011 
• 22 March 2012   

 
Recommended that subject to the change to the September 
2011         meeting being agreed, the schedule of meetings of the 
Joint Committee as shown above be agreed. 

 
B) Proper Officers 

 
The Joint Committee is asked to note the following appointments 
 
Monitoring officer -  Michael Hayley (Assistant Director 
Business & Law, Gravesham) 
Deputy Monitoring Officer – Mark Radford, Corporate Services 
Director, Swale 
S151 Officer – Mick Hayward – Chief Finance Officer, Medway 
S151 Officer – Eric Fisher – Head of Finance, Swale 
 
Recommended that the appointment of the officers listed above 
be noted. 

 
 

 



C) Secretarial Support 
 

Recommended that the Joint Committee select Medway Council 
to provide secretarial support to the Joint Committee for the 
2011/2012 municipal year. 

  
 

9. Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the 
Chairman is of the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency.  

 

10. Exclusion   

 To move, if required, that pursuant to Section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 that the public be excluded from any items 
included in Part B of the agenda because it is likely in view of the nature 
of business to be transacted that if members of the public are present 
during those items, there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
  
 

 

 Part B - Items to be considered in Private  

11. Annual Report 2010-2011  (Pages 29 - 36) 

 To advise members of the performance and financial information for the 
year 2010/11. 
  
 

 

12. South Thames Gateway Building Control Partnership Business Plan 2011-
2014  

(Pages 37 - 
102) 

  
To approve the South Thames Gateway Building Control Partnership’s 
Business Plan for 2011-2014. 
  
 

 

13. Software Provision:  (Pages 103 - 
106) 

 To consider options for the future provision of software to the 
Partnership.  
 

 

 
 
 
Members 
 
  
  
 
Councillors: Jane Chitty 

Gerry Lewin 
John Burden 
 

 
  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

South Thames Gateway Building Control Joint Committee 
 

Wednesday, 23 March 2011                      10.30am 
 

 
Present: 
 
Cllr Michael Snelling (Chairman) 
 
Cllrs: Jane Chitty (Vice-Chairman) 
 Gerry Lewin 
 
Tony Van Veghel  Director South Thames Gateway Building Control Partnership 
Janine Boughton South Thames Gateway Building Control Partnership 
 
Sarah Kilkie  Gravesham Borough Council 
Stuart Bobby  Gravesham Borough Council 
Sue Hill  Gravesham Borough Council 
 
Lisa Fillery   Medway Council 
Angela Riches  Medway Council 
Stephen Gaimster Medway Council 
 
James Freeman Swale Borough Council 
 
 
 
25. Apologies  
 
An apology for absence was received from Kevin Woolmer, Medway Council. 
 
26. Minutes  
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 20th January 2011 were signed by the Chairman. 
 
27. Declarations of Interest  
 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 
28. Reorganisation  
 
Tony Ven Veghel circulated an updated report relating to the changes being made to the 
staffing structure in order to reflect the early retirements of two staff and the formation of 
three operational groups. 
 
The planned reduction in staffing levels had been accelerated to 1 April 2011 due 
comprehensive spending review.  The changes reflected a move away from the traditional 
geographical model to one in which three operational teams would cover the areas of plan 
vetting, site inspection and consultancy/public protection services.   
 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



South Thames Gateway Building Control Joint Committee 23.03.2011 

2 

In order to provide flexibility it was intended that staff would move within the teams as 
required and team members will be rotated between the various functions to gain experience 
in each area of the service being delivered.  The make up and the personnel in each team 
had been agreed following consultation with staff and the operational details were being 
designed through consultation and staff workshops. 
 
Members noted that future improvements to the consultancy arm of the partnership may 
result in consideration of its potential standing as a local authority company. 
 
Members expressed their thanks to the two retirees who between them had over 78 years 
experience in the field for their steadfast work and wished them both a happy retirement. 
 
Members also wished to express their thanks to Cllr W G Dyke from Gravesham for his 
support to the partnership. 
 

Resolved that the new staffing arrangements be approved. 
 
Reason  

 
The Joint Committee has a key role in ensuring adequate resources are in place to 
deliver a high quality service to customers. 

 
29. Annual Audit & Inspection Letter  
 
The Committee considered the Annual Audit and Inspection letter received and a proposed 
response prepared by the Committee’s Section 151 officer Mick Hayward. 
 
The Audit and Inspection letter confirms that the annual return was in accordance with Audit 
Commission requirements; contained no errors and complied with all relevant legislation and 
regulatory requirements. 
 
Two matters concerning possible implications of changes to year-end reporting and changes 
to financial operating procedures to ensure that authorisation by two nominated officers 
concerning fees levied for building control inspections takes place were drawn to Members 
attention. 
 

Resolved that the Annual Audit and Inspection letter and the letter of representation 
in response be approved. 

 
Reason 

 
The Joint Committee has a key role in monitoring the performance of the Partnership 
and the Annual Audit and Inspection etter summarises the Audit Commission’s 
assessment of the Partnership. 

 
30. Exclusion  
 

Resolved that pursuant to Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 that 
the public be excluded from the following items of business due to the nature of 
business to be transacted and the likelihood that there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

Page 2



South Thames Gateway Building Control Joint Committee 23.03.2011 

3 

31. Monitoring Report - October 2010 to February 2011  
 
The Committee was updated on the current forecasts for the 2011/12 financial year and 
given details of the progress made against the objectives of the Business Plan 2010/11. 
 
Applications were significantly lower than last year and the expected recovery in numbers 
had not materialised.  Predictions by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors showed that 
the situation for the construction industry was likely to worsen over 2011/12 financial year.  
In addition the number of non fee earning applications remained at a high level including 
those where adaptations were being made for disabled persons.   
 
The Partnership was looking at new ways of working and providing value for money. 
Efforts included a new regime for debt recovery; detailed time analysis by staff to ensure 
costs were appropriately recharged and looking at the various options for the renewal of a 
software contract which could provide possible self serve options. 
 
Finally attention was drawn to the need to each of the partner authorities to consider the 
future of the Partnership.  The initial term of five years would expire at the end of September 
2012.  It was expected that a report detailing the legal requirements and the necessary 
Memorandum of Agreement would be presented to the AGM in June 2011. 
 

Resolved that the report be noted. 
 

Reason  
The Constitution requires the Joint Committee to maintain a monitoring role on the 
progress of the Partnership. 

 
32. The South Thames Gateway Building Control Partnership  
 
Members were extremely grateful to everyone involved in the project and expressed their 
pride in the work undertaken to improve and change the services provided by the 
Partnership.  
 
 Close of meeting  
 
The meeting ended at 11.20 am. 
 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH THAMES GATEWAY BUILDING CONTROL           
JOINT COMMITTEE 

 
9 JUNE 2011 

 
 
 

FINAL OUTTURN AND STATEMENT OF 
 ACCOUNTS 2010 – 2011 AND APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL 

AUDITOR 
 
 

Report from:  Mick Hayward, Treasurer to the Joint Committee 
 
 
 
Summary 
 
The report addresses the requirement for the Joint Committee to approve the 
draft statement of accounts for the 2010 – 2011 financial year and appoint an 
external auditor. 
 

 
 
 

1. Budget and Policy Framework 
 
1.1 The Memorandum of Agreement and the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2003 require formal statements to be approved by the 
Joint Committee and these are provided at Appendix 1 to this report. 

 
2. Final Outturn 2010-2011 
 
2.1 The budget for 2010/11 was set at achieving breakeven, however 

continuing poor market conditions resulted in a forecast deficit of 
£84,000 being reported to Joint Committee on 20th January 2011. The 
committee also agreed that the partners be required to fund one-off 
early retirement costs of £59,000 in 2010/11, generating more than 
equivalent ongoing annual savings. 

 
2.2 An outturn deficit of £71,000 has now been established, an 

improvement of £13,000 on the forecast reported to Joint Committee in 
January. Early retirement costs remain at £59,000.  Table 1 below 
provides further detail of the outturn and resultant partner contributions.  
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6Page 5



 
 

Table 1  
 
  January Committee Actual  

STG OUTTURN v 
BUDGET 

2010-11 
Budget 

 
 

£000s 

2010-11 
Forecast 

 
 

£000s 

2010-11 
Early 

Retirement 
Costs 
£000s 

2010-11   
 
 
 

£000s 

2010-11 
Early 

Retirement 
Costs 
£000s 

Total expenditure 1,601 1,550 59 1,483 59 
Fee income (1,169) (1,034) 0 (980) 0 
Partner contributions 
(public protection) 

(432) (432) 0 (432) 0 

Net Deficit / (Surplus) 0 84 59 71 59 
      
Contributions – Public 
Protection 

     

- Gravesham 86 86  86  
- Swale 117 117  117  
- Medway 229 229  229  
      
Contributions - Deficit      
- Gravesham  17 12 14 12 
- Swale  23 16 19 16 
- Medway  44 31 38 31 
 
 
 
 
2.3 The accounts for 2010/11 are complicated by new Building Control 

Charging Regulations which impacted on STG from October 2010. 
These meant that, although the Joint Committee now sets its own 
charging policy (rather than regulated fees), it is still required to 
demonstrate ‘breakeven’ on chargeable work over a period of time.  

 
2.4 Further analysis has established that the deficit of £71,000 is split 

£17,000 (April – September 2010), £54,000 (October 2010 – March 
2011). Although the partners will be billed for their share of the full 
deficit, they have the option of ‘rolling’ forward their share of the 
£54,000 in a ‘negative reserve’ against which future surpluses can be 
offset (rather than charging the revenue account in 2010/11 – See 
Table 2.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 
 
Table 2 
 
ANALYSIS OF COSTS / 
INCOME 

2010-11   
 
 

£000s 

2010-11  
Non 

Chargeable 
£000s 

2010-11  
Chargeable 
Apr-Sept 
£000s 

2010-11  
 Chargeable 
Oct-Mar 
£000s 

Total expenditure 1,483 432 558 493 
Fee income (980)  (541) (439) 
Partner contributions 
(public protection) 

(432) (432)   

Net Deficit / (Surplus) 71 0 17 54 
     
Contributions – Public 
Protection 

 £ £ £ 

- Gravesham 86 86   
- Swale 117 117   
- Medway 229 229   
     
Contributions - Deficit     
- Gravesham 14  3,408.37 10,695.74 
- Swale 19  4,601.30 14,439.25 
- Medway 38  9,032.18 28,343.71 
 
 
2.5 The ‘early retirement’ contributions of £59,000 (Medway £31,270, 

Swale £15,930 and Gravesham £11,800 are not included in Table 2) 
 
3. Statement of Accounts 
 
3.1 The draft statements for approval are attached at Appendix 1.  These 

include 
 
3.1.1 Section 1 – Statement of Accounts 
 
3.1.2 Section 2 – Governance Statement 

This section summarises the expectation on the Joint Committee in the 
way it manages the Partnership. 

 
3.1.3 Section 3 – External auditor’s certificate and opinion 

To be completed in due course by the external auditor with any issues 
reported back to the Joint Committee. 

 
3.1.4 Section 4 – Annual Internal Audit Report 

The accounts of the Partnership are currently hosted by Medway 
Council and maintained on Medway’s financial systems.  As such there 
was no bespoke internal audit of the Partnership in 2010/2011 but the 
Audit Service Manager is able to provide the necessary certification on 
the basis of work undertaken on Medway’s systems. 

 
3.2 This format of the accounts is an abridged format as agreed with the 

Joint Committee’s external auditors, for the last three years, PKF Ltd. 

Page 7



They have recently confirmed that new audit regulations will allow the 
Joint Committee to continue with this format under a ‘limited assurance’ 
audit regime. This is important to the Joint Committee in two respects:- 

• If the full audit code were required to be followed, there would 
be a significant additional workload fall on the finance team at 
Medway Council which would result in additional cost to the 
Joint Committee. 

• PKF have advised that the audit fee payable would increase 
from £2,500 to in excess of £10,000 per annum were a full audit 
to be undertaken; 

 
3.3 Following approval of these draft accounts by the Joint Committee the 

external audit will commence including the opportunity for the general 
public to inspect the financial records.  In due course the external 
auditor will report back to the Joint Committee on his findings. 

 
4. Appointment of the External Auditor 
 
4.1 As noted above, PKF Ltd have acted as the Joint Committee’s external 

auditor for the 2007/8 to 2009/10 financial statements. However, the 
Audit Commission recently contacted the s151 Officer to notify that it 
intended to change the appointee to a member of its Audit Practice, a 
Jackie Bellard, with effect from the 2010/11 accounts. 

 
4.2 There was some concern at this proposal as PKF are also the auditors 

for Medway Council (who act as accountable body to the Joint 
Committee) and it seemed entirely logical for them to continue as the 
auditor to the Joint Committee. However, the Audit Commission have 
responded that (for contractual reasons) this could only happen if a ‘full 
code’ audit was undertaken as discussed in paragraph 3.2 above. 

 
4.3 If any change to the Audit Commission’s stance is forthcoming, it will 

be reported verbally to the meeting. Otherwise the Joint Committee is 
requested to agree the appointment of Jackie Bellard, of the Audit 
Commission’s Audit Practice, as external auditor to the Joint 
Committee for the 2010/2011 and 2011/2012 financial statements. The 
future role of the Audit Commission or any successor is unclear beyond 
March 2012.  

 
5. Financial Implications 
 
5.1 These are contained within the body of this report.   

 
6. Legal Implications 
 
6.1 There is a legal requirement for the Joint Committee to approve the 

draft Statement of Accounts. 
 
 
 

Page 8



 
 

7. Recommendations 
 

7.1 That the Joint Committee: 
- notes the outturn for 2010-2011 and respective partner 

contributions as presented in Table 1. 
- approves the Statement of Accounts as presented at Appendix 

1 
- approves the appointment of Jackie Bellard, of the Audit 

Commission, as auditor to the Joint Committee for the 2010/11 
and 2011/12 financial statements. 

 
8. Suggested Reasons for Decisions 
 
8.1 The Joint Committee has a key role in monitoring the performance of 

the Partnership and is required to approve the Statement of Accounts. 
 
Lead officer contact 
 
Mick Hayward, S151 Officer, South Thames Gateway Building Control 
Partnership, Compass Centre, Chatham Maritime, Kent, ME4 4YH 
Tel: 01634 332220 
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

SOUTH THAMES GATEWAY 
(STG) 

BUILDING CONTROL 
PARTNERSHIP 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ANNUAL RETURN 
2010/11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GRAVESHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL, MEDWAY COUNCIL AND  
SWALE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Page 11



Appendix 1 

Section 1 – Statement of accounts 
 
SOUTH THAMES GATEWAY BUILDING CONTROL PARTNERSHIP 
 
 
 Year ending 
 31 

March 
2010               
£000’s 

31 
March 
2011 
£000’s 

   
Balances brought forward 0 0 
   
Contributions from constituent authorities (607) (562) 
Total other receipts (965) (980) 
Staff costs 1,265 1,245 
Total other payments 307 297 
   
Balances carried forward 0 0 
   
Total cash and short term investments (see note) 0 0 
Total fixed / long term assets 0 0 
Total borrowings 0 0 
 
Note:-  The Partnership’s accounts are hosted by Medway Council and as 
such the Partnership does not have its own cash / bank balances. At 31 

March 2011 the Partnership owed the Council £106,778 in respect of its 
notional cash balance. 
 
 
I certify that the statement of 
accounts contained in this annual 
return presents fairly the financial 
position of the Partnership and its 
income and expenditure, or properly 
presents receipts and payments, as 
the case may be, for the year ended 
31 March 2011. 
 
Signed by the Responsible Financial 
Officer 
 
…………………………………… 
 
 
Date ………………………… 
 
 

I confirm that these accounts were 
approved by the Partnership Joint 
Committee and recorded as minute 
reference ………………… 
 
Date ……………….. 
 
 
 
Signed by Chair of meeting approving 
Partnerships accounts 
 
……………………………….….. 
 
 
Date ……………………… 

 
 

Page 12



Appendix 1 

Section 2 – Annual governance statement 
 
We acknowledge, as the members of STG Building Control Joint Committee, 
our responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound system of internal control, 
including the preparation of the statement of accounts. We confirm, to the 
best of our knowledge and belief, with respect to the partnership’s statement 
of accounts that 
 
• We have approved the statement of accounts, which has been prepared 

in accordance with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations and proper practice. 

• We have maintained an adequate system of internal control, including 
measures designed to prevent and detect fraud and corruption and 
reviewed its effectiveness. 

• We have taken all reasonable steps to assure ourselves that there are 
no matters of actual or potential non-compliance with laws, regulations 
and codes of practice which could have a significant financial effect on 
the ability of the Partnership to conduct its business or on its finances. 

• We have provided proper opportunity during the year for the exercise of 
electors’ rights in accordance with the requirements of the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations. 

• We have carried out an assessment of the risks facing the Partnership 
and taken appropriate steps to manage those risks, including the 
introduction of internal controls and/or external insurance cover where 
required. 

• We have maintained throughout the year an adequate and effective 
system of internal audit of the Partnership’s accounting records and 
control systems and carried out a review of its effectiveness. 

• We have taken appropriate action on all matters raised in reports from 
internal and external audit. 

• We have considered whether any litigation, liabilities or commitments, 
events or transactions, occurring either during or after the year-end, have 
a financial impact on the Partnership and, where appropriate, have 
included them in the statement of accounts. 

 
 
This annual governance statement is approved by the joint committee and 
recorded as minute reference …………….     Dated  ……………….. 
 
 
Signed on behalf of the Partnership Joint Committee 
 
Signed by ………………………………..  (Chair)   Date ………….. 
 
Signed by………………………………… (Clerk)   Date…………… 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



Appendix 1 

Section 3 – External auditor’s certificate and opinion 
 
CERTIFICATE 
 
We certify that we have completed the audit of the annual return for the year 
ended 31 March 2011 of 
 
SOUTH THAMES GATEWAY BUILDING CONTROL PARTNERSHIP 
 
Respective responsibilities of the Partnership and the auditor 
The Partnership is responsible for the preparation of the accounts in 
accordance with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations and 
for the preparation of an annual return which: 
• Summarises the Partnership’s accounting records for the year ended 31 

March 2011; and 
• Confirms and provides assurance on those matters that are important to 

our audit responsibility. 
Our responsibility is to conduct an audit in accordance with guidance issued 
by the Audit Commission and, on the basis of our review of the annual return 
and supporting information, to report whether any matters that come to our 
attention give cause for concern that relevant legislation and regulatory 
requirements have not been met.  
 
External Auditor’s Report 
 
(Except for the matters reported below) on the basis of our review, in our 
opinion the information contained in the annual return is in accordance with 
the Audit Commission’s requirements and no matters have come to our 
attention giving cause for concern that relevant legislation and regulatory 
requirements have not been met. (*delete as appropriate) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Other matters not affecting our opinion which we draw to the attention of the 
Joint Committee 
 
 
 
 
External Auditor’s signature ………………………………. 
 
External Auditor’s name……………………………  Date……………. 
 
Note: The auditor signing this page has been appointed by the Audit Commission and is reporting to you 
that they have carried out and completed all the work that is required of them by law. For further 
information please refer to the Audit Commission’s publication entitled Statement of Responsibilities of 
Auditors and of Audited Small Bodies.  
 

Page 14



Appendix 1 

Section 4 – Annual internal audit report 
 

Note - The accounts of the Partnership are currently hosted by Medway 
Council and maintained on Medway’s financial systems. As such the head of 
internal audit is able to provide the necessary certification on the basis of work 
undertaken on Medway’s systems. 
 

The Council’s internal audit, acting independently and on the basis of an 
assessment of risk, carried out a selective assessment of compliance with 
relevant procedures and controls expected to be in operation during the 
financial year ended 31 March 2011. 
 

Internal audit has been carried out in accordance with the Council’s needs 
and planned coverage. On the basis of the findings in the areas examined, 
the internal audit conclusions are summarised in this table. Set out below are 
the objectives of internal control and, opposite, are the internal audit 
conclusions on whether, in all significant respects, the following control 
objectives were being achieved throughout the financial year to a standard 
adequate to meet the needs of the Council. 
 
 Agreed? Yes / No / Not 

covered 

Appropriate books of account have been properly kept 
throughout the year 

 

The council’s financial regulations have been met, payments 
were supported by invoices, expenditure was approved and VAT 
was appropriately accounted for 

 

The council assessed the significant risks to achieving its 
objectives and reviewed the adequacy of arrangements to 
manage these 

 

Expected income was fully received, based on correct prices, 
properly recorded and promptly banked and VAT was 
appropriately accounted for 

 

Petty cash payments were properly supported by receipts, 
expenditure was approved and VAT appropriately accounted for  

 

Salaries to employees and allowances to members were paid in 
accordance with approvals and PAYE and NI requirements 
properly applied 

 

Asset and investment registers were complete and accurate and 
properly maintained 

 

Periodic and year end bank reconciliations were properly carried 
out 

 

Year end accounts were prepared on the correct accounting 
basis (receipts and payments, income and expenditure), agreed 
with cash book, were supported by an adequate audit trail from 
underlying records and, where appropriate, debtors and 
creditors were properly recorded  

 

 
 
Audit Services Manager, Medway Council 
 
Signature      Date:  

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH THAMES GATEWAY BUILDING CONTROL           
JOINT COMMITTEE 

 
9 JUNE 2011 

 
SOUTH THAMES GATEWAY BUILDING CONTROL 

ACCOMMODATION 
 

Report from: Tony Van Veghel, Director, South Thames Gateway 
Building Control Partnership 

 
 
Summary 
 
This report seeks to inform Members of the partnerships accommodation 
arrangements following the expiry of the current agreement on 02 November 
2011. 
 
 
 
1. Budget and Policy Framework 
 
1.1 Members are required to ensure satisfactory facilities are in place so 

that the partnership can deliver a customer focused service. 
 
2. Background 

 
2.1 Under paragraph 3.3 of the Memorandum of Agreement the 

partnership has agreed that Medway will act as host authority and as 
such one of its responsibilities is to ensure the provision of a principle 
office. 

 
2.2 Since the partnership commenced in October 2007 the operation has 

been delivered from the Compass Centre Chatham Maritime.  To begin 
with in Block D which was situated on two floors and from November 
2008 from the ground floor in South Block. 

 
3. Director’s comments 
 
3.1 The Compass Centre is in itself leased by Medway Council from a 

number of separate lease holders with their lease expiring in 2015. 
 
3.2 The current arrangements between Medway Council and the 

partnership expires in November 2011 and Medway’s property section 
are seeking agreement to extend the lease from 3 November 2011 until 
the 11 March 2015 (the date at which the Council’s lease ends). 

 

Agenda Item 7Page 17



3.3 This has highlighted an issue with regard to the length of the new lease 
extending beyond the original Term of the agreement for the 
partnership.  This issue is the subject of a separate report to 
committee. 

 
3.4 Within the terms of the proposed arrangements is a mutual break 

clause which would take affect anytime after 1 April 2012 with either 
party giving no less than 6 months notice in writing, to expire anytime 
after 1 April 2012.  Therefore the issue indicated in 3.3 would not 
prevent the agreement being signed. 

 
3.5 The rental costs reflect 13.1% of the total lease cost for Medway 

Council being the percentage of floor occupied by the partnership. 
 
3.6 A copy of the agreement is shown in Appendix 1 together with copies 

of plans of the building and car park areas. 
 
4. Financial Implications 
 
4.1 A budget figure of £58,300 has been provided for in the agreed 

budgets however the rental cost referred to in 3.5 above amounts to 
£55,282 making a saving of £3,018. 

 
5. Legal Implications 

 
5.1 The terms of the lease have been scrutinised and agreed by the 

partnerships legal representatives at Gravesham. 
 
6. Risk Management 
 
6.1 The partnership is aware of a number of prospective clients that have 

approached Medway Council with regard to taking over the leased 
areas of the Compass Centre.  Most recently the University of Kent 
moved into Block D and the main reception area.  Should a client come 
forward with a proposal to take over the ground floor of South Block the 
mutual break clause would be enacted so that the partnership would 
have to move else where.  

 
7. Recommendations 

 
7.1 It is recommended that Members note the report. 
 
8. Suggested Reasons for Decisions 
 
8.1 The Joint Committee has a key role in ensuring suitable facilities are 

available to the partnership to deliver the service to its customers. 
 
Lead officer contact 
 

Page 18



Tony Van Veghel, Director, South Thames Gateway Building Control 
Partnership, Compass Centre, Chatham Maritime, Kent, ME4 4YH 
Tel:  01634 331552 
E-mail: tony.vanveghel@stgbc.org.uk  
 
Background papers 
 
None 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Please contact:  Noel Filmer  
Your ref:  
Our ref: GM/12 
Date: 23 November 2010.  
 
Medway, Swale and Gravesham 
Building Control Partnership  
South Block Compass Centre  
Chatham Maritime. 
Chatham  
Kent  
FAO Tony Vanveghel 

Business Support – Asset & Property Management 
Civic Centre 

Strood  Rochester 
Kent  ME2 4AU 

(DX56006 STROOD) 
Telephone: 01634 306000 

                        Direct line:01634 332415 
Facsimile: 01634 332867          

e-mail: noel.filmer@medway.gov.uk 
 
 
 
Dear Tony. 
 
RE:  LETTING FOR USE OF PART OF SOUTH BLOCK COMPASS CENTRE BY THE 
BUILDING CONTROL PARTNERSHIP. 
 
As discussed in our telephone conversation on 23 November 2010, your organisation’s agreement 
to use the above premises ends on 2 November 2011. 
 
I am prepared to recommend that Medway Council allows the building control partnership (BCP) 
to continue using the Premises and the parking spaces and the accessway (provided that if the 
Council is unable to procure use of the parking spaces for BCP at any time during the term, BCP 
may use 20 alternative car parking spaces within the car park, of such other area as the Medway 
Council shall reasonably designate) on giving at least 28 days notice in writing (except in cases of 
emergency) on the following terms: 
 
"The Council's lease" means the lease of the premises dated 12 March 1990 made between (1) 
Midland Bank Trust Company Ltd and  (2) Kent County Council . 
 
"Plan no 1":  means the plan no 1 attached.   
 
 “Plan no 2":  means the plan no  2 attached.   
 
The Premises: the area of ground floor south block, Compass Centre as shown edged red 

on plan no 1.   Together with the right to have access to the hatched blue 
areas or such other areas as the Council shall reasonably designate. 

 
The parking spaces: the 20 car parking spaces shown edged red on plan no 2.  
 
The car park: the car park shown edged green on plan no 2. 
 
Accessway :               The accessway shown hatched black on plan no 2. (Or such alternative 

route as shall be designated)  
 
"Swale": means Swale Borough Council. 
 
"Gravesham": means Gravesham Borough Council. 
 
"Medway": means Medway Council. 

Page 21



2 

 
Term:  From 3rd November 2011 until 11th March 2015. (The date when the 

council’s lease ends)   
 
Break Option: Mutual break option to take effect any time after 1st April 2012, with either 

party giving no less than 6 months notice in writing, to expire any time after 
1st April 2012.  

 
Rent:  The rent is to be £55,282 per annum, payable monthly in advance by 

Journal Transfer. (£4,606.83 per month). This rent is calculated as 13.1% of 
the total rent, which the Council pays for South block. (Currently 
£422,000pa). The rent is exclusive of VAT; therefore, if Medway is charged 
non- recoverable VAT on the rent, BCP will have to cover this cost in 
addition to the rent.  

 
Outgoings:               Provided that Medway provides reasonable proof of expenditure, BCP is to 

pay for or reimburse Medway for a fair proportion of all outgoings in respect 
of the premises, to include but not be limited to, Business rates, Water, 
electricity, telephone, sewerage, gas, refuse collection, the cost of Medway's 
landlord’s and management company’s duties/service charge as set out in 
lease.  

   
Repairs/cleaning: BCP is to clean the windows (inside and out) and to keep the interior of the 

premises clean and in good repair and any services, which serve exclusively 
the premises in good repair and condition. (Including but not limited to the 
intruder alarm)  Medway Council is responsible for the external repairs of the 
south block and the repairs of the common parts shown hatched blue on 
plan no 1. Provided that Medway provides reasonable proof of expenditure, 
then BCP is to reimburse a fair proportion of this cost to Medway on 
demand.  

 
Fire Alarm:                 BCP is to test the fire alarm at least once a week at a set time and on a set 

day. This is currently done at 10.30 on Fridays. 
 
Decoration:              If required by Medway's landlord, BCP is to decorate the interior of the 

premises in the last year of the term (however determined) (exact 
specification as set out in the lease to Medway of the South block). 

 
Insurance: Medway's landlord insures the premises and claims the cost of insurance 

back from Medway. Provided that Medway provides reasonable proof of 
expenditure, BCP is to reimburse 13.1% of this cost to Medway on demand. 
Medway insures the contents for such reasonable sum as the parties agree. 
Provided that Medway provides reasonable proof of expenditure, BCP is to 
reimburse Medway on demand for the cost of this contents insurance and is 
to pay the excess from any claims. 

   
Use:  Class B1. Office use. 
 
Alterations:               BCP will not to carry out any major and/or structural alterations to the 

premises, without Medway's and Medway's landlord’s consent and if 
required will re-instate the premises at the end of the letting. 

 
Reservations:           Medway and its landlords are to be able to enter the premises to inspect it 

and carry out any obligations under the terms of its lease of the south Block. 
 

Page 22



3 

Alienation:               BCP is not to allow any third parties to sublet or occupy the premises. 
 
 
Medway agrees with Swale and Gravesham: - 
 
(1) To comply with the tenant's covenants contained in the lease (save to the extent that the 

tenant's covenants are by this agreement to be performed by BCP); 
 
(2) To take all reasonable steps to enforce the landlord's covenants and the management 

company's covenants contained in the Council’s lease. 
 
Gravesham, Swale and Medway each agree that all liabilities properly incurred by Medway relating 
to this letting to BCP shall be shared by Gravesham, Swale and Medway in accordance with the 
last estimate of the Agreed Proportions specified in the Memorandum of Agreement dated 
28 September 2007 between Gravesham, Medway and Swale (i.e Gravesham 20%; Medway 53% 
and Swale 27%) and Gravesham and Swale, shall fully indemnify Medway to the extent of their 
respective Agreed Proportions in respect of all losses, costs, claims, actions, proceedings, 
expenses or liabilities of whatsoever nature relating to and arising during the BCP's use and 
occupation of the Premises. 
 
Please confirm that the Partnership is in agreement with the above terms and I will then send final 
copies to you for signature. 
 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 

 
 
Noel Filmer 
Valuation and asset management. 
 
 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 25



P
age 26

T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 27



P
age 28

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11Page 29

Document is Restricted



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12Page 37

Document is Restricted



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 41

Document is Restricted



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13Page 103

Document is Restricted



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To sign the minutes of the previous meeting
	6 Final Out-turn and Statement of Accounts 2010-2011 and Appointment of External Auditor
	Appendix

	7 Accommodation for the Partnership
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Plan

	11 Annual Report 2010-2011
	12 South Thames Gateway Building Control Partnership Business Plan 2011-2014
	Draft Plan

	13 Software Provision:

